
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 10 November 2020 

 

MEETING OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Wednesday 18 November 2020 At: 10.00 am 

Venue: Virtual Meeting via Zoom with Public Access via YouTube 
https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Standards meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor N Laws (Chair) 
Councillor G Rossi (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Brenton, M Clarke, L Ford, C Hawkins and T Inch 
 
Parish Representative: Rich Clark 
 
Independent Person: Martin Rawle 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies for Absence  

2.   Minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 26th August 2020 (Pages 
3 - 6) 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

4.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II (if applicable)  



 
 

 

5.   Urgent Matters of Information to be brought forward with the permission of the 
Chair and the Committee  

6.   Best Practice (Pages 7 - 12) 

 To receive an update from the Head Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer 
 

7.   Forward Plan (Page 13) 

8.   Exclusion of Members of the Public  

 The Chair to move : 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in )Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

9.   Part II (Closed Session)  

10.   Complaints Update  

 To receive a verbal update from the Head Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer 
 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

 
TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Meeting via Zoom 

 
Wednesday, 26 August 2020 - 10.00 am 

 
PRESENT Councillor N Laws (Chair) 

Councillors D Brenton, M Clarke, L Ford, C Hawkins, T Inch and 
C Hodson (present as substitute) 

 
 Rich Clark - Shebbear Parish Council 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Dorey - Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
 J Walter - Governance Manager 
 M Richards - Democratic Services Officer 
   

 
1.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rossi and Mr Rawle. 
 

2.    MINUTES  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Laws, seconded by Councillor Clarke and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2019 be agreed and signed 
as a correct record. 
 
A recorded vote was taken. 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN 

Councillor Brenton   X 

Councillor Clarke X   

Councillor Ford X   

Councillor Hawkins X   

Councillor Hodson   X 

Councillor Inch X   

Councillor Laws X   

Councillor Rossi    

 
(Vote:  For 5, Abstentions 2) 
 

3.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair asked that declarations of interest be made as and when the specific 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

4.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II (IF APPLICABLE)  
 
There were no Part II items. 
 

5.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 
The Chair expressed his condolences to the family of Councillor Harold Martin, 
former Parish Representative on the Committee, who had sadly passed away since 
the last meeting.  Councillor Laws echoed Councillor Lock’s tribute that Harold “was 
a true gentleman and was always happy to help others”. 
 

6.    CODE OF CONDUCT CONSULTATION UPDATE  
 
The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer informed the Committee that the Local 
Government Association was currently consulting in relation to a Model Member 
Code of Conduct.  Although not mandatory, given that there are 63 parishes within 
the District and many TDC Councillors are also Parish/Town Councillors, a unified 
Code of Conduct would make things easier for all concerned.  All council Codes of 
Conduct follow a similar format and are based on the Nolan Principles.  
 
The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer ran through the obligations of general 
conduct as outlined in the LGA document.  
 
Questions were responded to and comments made as follows: 
 

 Confidentiality and access to information 
 

Ultimately, it is the Chief Executive who decides whether an item should be 
confidential.  However, the Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer will happily 
discuss and share information, where appropriate, in a private meeting room, 
dependent on the nature of information, if members can explain why they 
need it. 
 
A more specific definition of “confidential” and “exempt” can be included in 
TDC’s Code of Conduct.   
 
The Governance Manager commented that he and the Senior Solicitor & 
Monitoring Officer had attended an LGA event where issues relating to 
confidentiality and exemption had been raised.  A further event is to take 
place on 17 September between 6 and 7 pm.  Anybody wishing to attend 
should contact the Governance Manager. 

 

 Council resources and facilities 
 

Councillor Ford reminded Members that parking permits are only for use 
when on Council business. 

 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

 Breaches of the Code of Conduct 
 

The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer confirmed that TDC had its own 
policy and protocol for dealing with breaches and was happy to report that, 
for some time now, there had been no serious issues warranting a full 
Standards Committee hearing. 
 
A lot of the consultation responses relate to sanctions which can be imposed 
for breaches of regulations and it was accepted that the sanctions available 
are limited. 

 
The LGA hopes to present the Code of Conduct to the General Assembly in 
Autumn 2020.   
 
The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer urged Members to stand up against any 
behaviour they find unacceptable.  
 
A short debate took place about whether hearings should be held in public.  The 
Chair was minded to add this to the Forward Plan. 
 

7.    BEST PRACTICE RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
Presenting the list of best practice recommendations, the Senior Solicitor & 
Monitoring Officer alluded to the fact that TDC already undertakes most of these. 
 
The following amendments were proposed: 
 

Best practice 2/best practice 6 - malicious allegations 
 

 To include political and vexatious allegations.  
 

An efficient system needs to be put in place to filter these out. 
 
The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer clarified that the best practice 
recommendations, as presented, focused on the Members’ Code of Conduct.   
Officers have an employee/employer relationship and a disciplinary procedure 
would be implemented if an officer were to behave inappropriately.  There were 
very limited sanctions which could be imposed on a Member if behaviour was 
considered to be inappropriate. 
 
Guidance was sought in relation to challenges and scrutiny of Officers, specifically 
whether more senior officers should accept that they will be more robustly 
challenged than junior officers.  The Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer 
encouraged Members to approach more senior members of staff. 
 

Best practice 7 – Independent Persons 
 

TDC’s constitution requires that 2 Independent Persons sit on the Standards 
Committee.  Currently, and for some time now, there has only been Mr Rawle, 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

who does a fantastic job.  A further push was needed to appoint another 
Independent Person. 

 
Mr Clark reminded the Committee of the need to seek a replacement for himself 
also.  The Chair acknowledged the valuable contribution made by Mr Clark and 
thanked him. 
 
The Governance Manager and Senior Solicitor & Monitoring Officer explained the 
recruitment and appointment process for both Independent Person and Parish 
Representative.  Advertisements will be placed but if Members know of anybody 
suitable please encourage them to approach the Council.  Mr Clark spoke of his 
experience of the process, finding it to be both fair and thorough. 
 
 

8.    FORWARD PLAN  
 
It was agreed that the Model Member Code of Conduct be revisited once the LGA 
presents the final draft. 
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and closed at 10.54 am 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 6



From: Lesley Bainsfair <lesley.bainsfair@cabinetoffice.gov.uk>  
Sent: 16 September 2020 16:34 
To:  
Subject: Fwd: Best practice in local government, follow up by the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life 
 
Hi  
 
Below is the email we sent out and we'll be writing again in October. 
 
Best wishes. 
 
Lesley 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
Lesley Bainsfair 
Head of the Secretariat 
Committee on Standards in Public Life 
E: lesley.bainsfair@public-standards.gov.uk  
M: 07736 635281 
1 Horse Guards Road, London, SW1A 2HQ 
Follow us on Twitter @publicstandards 

 
Read the Committee's blog on our review of the regulation of election finance 
 
 

FOR THE ATTENTION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
I am writing from the Committee on Standards in Public Life to follow up recommendations 
made in our January 2019 report on local government ethical standards. 
 
In that report, we identified some best practice recommendations which represent a 
benchmark for ethical practice and which we expect any local authority should implement. 
 
We said in our report that we would review the implementation of those best practice 
recommendations in 2020. We completely understand the unexpected and unprecedented 
pressures that local authorities are facing this year with COVID-19, so we are not of course 
asking for an immediate response. The purpose of this email is to let you know that we will be 
writing again in the autumn to ask you for your progress against these recommendations. I have 
attached a list of the best recommendations for ease of reference, but they are of course also 
set out in the report. 
 
If you have any questions, please do just let us know. Otherwise, we wish you well and look 
forward to being in touch again later this year. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Lesley Bainsfair (Ms) 

 

 

   
 
Lesley Bainsfair 
Head of the Secretariat 
Committee on Standards in Public Life 
E: lesley.bainsfair@public-standards.gov.uk  
T: 020 7271 0855 M: 07736 635281 
1 Horse Guards Road, London, SW1A 2HQ 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 
 

Follow us on Twitter @publicstandards 

 
Read the Committee's latest blog on our review of the regulation of election finance 
 
The Committee on Standards in Public Life is now working remotely in line with government health 
advice on COVID-19. We are working as usual and you can contact us via our personal emails or 
public@public-standards.gov.uk. 

 
 

  

  

 

Attachments area 
 

 

   

 

 
 

Page 8



18

List of best practice

List of best practice
Our best practice recommendations are directed to local authorities, and we expect that any local 
authority can and should implement them. We intend to review the implementation of our best 
practice in 2020.

Best practice 1: Local authorities should include prohibitions on bullying and harassment 
in codes of conduct. These should include a definition of bullying and harassment, 
supplemented with a list of examples of the sort of behaviour covered by such a definition.

Best practice 2: Councils should include provisions in their code of conduct requiring 
councillors to comply with any formal standards investigation, and prohibiting trivial or 
malicious allegations by councillors.

Best practice 3: Principal authorities should review their code of conduct each year and 
regularly seek, where possible, the views of the public, community organisations and 
neighbouring authorities.

Best practice 4: An authority’s code should be readily accessible to both councillors and 
the public, in a prominent position on a council’s website and available in council premises.

Best practice 5: Local authorities should update their gifts and hospitality register at least 
once per quarter, and publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.

Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest test 
against which allegations are filtered.

Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent 
Persons.

Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to undertake 
a formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to review and 
comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to dismiss as being without 
merit, vexatious, or trivial.

Page 9



19

List of best practice

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of misconduct 
following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published as soon as possible 
on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the provisions of the code engaged by 
the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker, 
and any sanction applied.

Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible guidance 
on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the process for 
handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and outcomes.

Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish councillor 
towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council as a whole, rather 
than the clerk in all but exceptional circumstances.

Best practice 12: Monitoring Officers’ roles should include providing advice, support and 
management of investigations and adjudications on alleged breaches to parish councils 
within the remit of the principal authority. They should be provided with adequate training, 
corporate support and resources to undertake this work. 

Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address 
any conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps 
should include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake the 
investigation.

Best practice 14: Councils should report on separate bodies they have set up or which 
they own as part of their annual governance statement, and give a full picture of their 
relationship with those bodies. Separate bodies created by local authorities should abide 
by the Nolan principle of openness, and publish their board agendas and minutes and 
annual reports in an accessible place.

Best practice 15: Senior officers should meet regularly with political group leaders or 
group whips to discuss standards issues.

Page 10



28/10/2020 Cabinet Office Mail - Re: FW: 

1/2 

 

 

 

 
 

Re: FW: 
1 message 

 
 

Lesley Bainsfair <lesley.bainsfair@cabinetoffice.gov.uk> 

 
 

Lesley Bainsfair <lesley.bainsfair@cabinetoffice.gov.uk> 28 October 2020 at 16:16 

To: Lesley Bainsfair <lesley.bainsfair@public-standards.gov.uk> 
 
 
 
 
 

From: lesley.glanz@cabinetoffice.gov.uk [mailto:lesley.glanz@cabinetoffice.gov.uk] On Behalf Of Lord 
Evans 
Sent: 02 October 2020 08:05 
To:   
Subject: Letter to Local Authority CEO implementation of CoSPL recommended List of Best Practice 

 

 
FOR THE ATTENTION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
I am writing as Chair of the Committee on Standards in Public Life.  In January 2019 we published our Local 

Government Ethical Standards report.  In that report, we made a number of recommendations and identified some 

best practice recommendations to improve ethical standards in local government. The best practice represents a 

benchmark for ethical practice which we expect any local authority should implement. 

 
We undertook in that report to follow up the best practice recommendations with local authorities this year and we 

emailed in July to say that we would be seeking an update. The purpose of this email is to ask you to update us on 

your progress against these best practice recommendations.  We would be grateful to know what steps you have 

taken to put those recommendations into place.  A template for your brief update is attached. 

 
It would be helpful to hear from you by 30 November 2020 as we intend to publish responses on our website in the 

new year.  A copy of this letter will also be published on the Committee's website. 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Lord Evans of Weardale 

 
 
 

-- 

 
 
 

Jonathan Evans 

Chair 

Committee on Standards in Public Life 

1 Horse Guards Road, London, SW1A 2HQ 

Follow us on Twitter @publicstandards 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
-- 

Page 11

mailto:lesley.bainsfair@cabinetoffice.gov.uk
mailto:lesley.bainsfair@cabinetoffice.gov.uk
mailto:lesley.bainsfair@public-standards.gov.uk
mailto:lesley.glanz@cabinetoffice.gov.uk
mailto:lesley.glanz@cabinetoffice.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF
https://twitter.com/publicstandards


28/10/2020 Cabinet Office Mail - Re: FW: 

2/2 

 

 

Lesley Glanz 

Executive Officer 

Committee on Standards in Public Life 

E: lesley.glanz@public-standards.gov.uk 

T: 020 7271 2685 M: 07801 404 936 

1 Horse Guards Road, London, SW1A 2HQ 

Follow us on Twitter @publicstandards 

Page 12

mailto:lesley.glanz@public-standards.gov.uk
https://twitter.com/publicstandards


STANDARDS COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2020-2021 
 

2020/21 24 June 2020 26 August 2020 
 

18 November 2020 
 

31 March 2021 
 

 10am 10am 10am 10am 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Review of Complaints 
Form 

 
Draft Code of Conduct 

Consultation 
 

Committee on Standards 
in Public Life best practice 

recommendations 

 
Best Practice 

 
 

 
Standing item Complaint update 

 
 

Complaint update 
 
 

Complaint update 
 
 

Complaint update 
 
 

Standing 
Item 

 
 
 

   

 

 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 26th August 2020
	6 Best Practice
	Local Government Ethical Standards best practice for LAs (1) (1)
	2020.10.26  CoPSL email sent to LAs re Best Practice Recs on 2.10.20

	7 Forward Plan

